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King’s Court, Chapel Street, King’s Lynn, Norfolk, PE30 1EX 
Telephone: 01553 616377 
Fax: 01553 691663 

9 December 2009 

Dear Member 

Standards Committee

You are hereby invited to attend a meeting of the above Committee to be held 
on Thursday 17 December 2009, in The Council Chamber, Town Hall, 
Saturday Market Place, King’s Lynn starting at 10.00 am to discuss the 
business shown below. 

Yours sincerely 

Chief Executive 

A G E N D A

1 APOLOGIES

  To receive any apologies for absence. 

2 PREVIOUS MINUTES

 To approve the Minutes of the meeting of the Local Assessment 
Sub Committees 28 September 2009 (attached), Full Committee 
on held on 28 September 2009, and 16 November 2009 
(attached).

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

 Please indicate whether the interest is a personal one only or one 
which is also prejudicial.  A declaration of an interest should 
indicate the nature of the interest and the agenda item to which it 
relates.  In the case of a personal interest, the member may speak 
and vote on the matter.  If a prejudicial interest is declared, the 



member should withdraw from the room whilst the matter is 
discussed. 

 These declarations apply to all those members present, whether 
the member is part of the meeting, attending to speak as a local 
member on an item or simply observing the meeting from the 
public seating area. 

4 REPORT OF THE DEPUTY MONITORING OFFICER

To receive the report of an investigation under Section 60(2) of the 
Local Government Act 2000 by Teresa Campion, Solicitor and 
Deputy Monitoring Officer to the Borough Council of King’s Lynn & 
West Norfolk, into the allegations concerning a member of the 
Borough Council of Kings Lynn and West Norfolk, in order for the 
Standards Committee to determine whether the Committee agrees 
with the Investigating Officer’s findings of no breach in respect of 
one of the allegations contained in the report. 

5 DATE OF NEXT MEETING OF THE FULL STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE

 Monday 18 January 2009 at 10 am in the Committee Suite, King’s 
Court, Chapel Street, King’s Lynn. 

To: Councillor I Goodson, D Harwood, J Legg, A Tyler and C Walters

Mr M Sale (Independent Member), Mr R Steward (Independent 
Member), Mr G Brierley (Independent Member), Mr J Dawson 
(Parish Representative), Mr H Malik (Parish Representative), Mr D 
Shepperson (Parish Representative) 

 N Leader, Legal Services Manager/Monitoring Officer 
 T Campion, Solicitor and Deputy Monitoring Officer 
 J Bullen, Senior Lawyer 

 Management Team  

 Press 

Contact:  Wendy Vincent, Democratic Services Officer, (01553) 616377 or 
wendy.vincent@west-norfolk.gov.uk
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BOROUGH COUNCIL OF KING’S LYNN AND WEST NORFOLK

STANDARDS COMMITTEE – LOCAL ASSESSMENT SUB-COMMITTEE

Minutes of the Local Assessment Sub-Committee
held on Tuesday 28 September  2009, 

at 9.45 am in the Heritage Room, Town Hall, 
Saturday Market Place, King’s Lynn 

PRESENT:
Mr R Steward (Chairman – Independent Member) 

Mr J Dawson (Parish Representative) and Councillor J Legg 

OFFICERS PRESENT: 

 Nicola Leader  - Monitoring Officer 
Jacqui Bullen   - Senior Lawyer 

 Wendy Vincent  - Democratic Services Officer 

1. Exclusion of Press and Public

RESOLVED “That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act, 
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following 
item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1, 2 and 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Act." 

2. Declaration of Interests

 There were none. 

3. To consider the report of the Monitoring Officer (Complaint 13/09)

 The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting. 

 The Sub-Committee considered the Monitoring Officer’s report.  The 
purpose of the Sub-Committee was to consider the complaint against the 
assessment criteria agreed by the Standards Committee on 23 June 2008 
and to reach one of the three following decisions: 

 Refer the allegation to the Monitoring Officer which under section 
57A(3) of the Local Government Act 2000, as amended, may be 
another authority – for investigation or some other action such as 
mediation or training. 

 Refer the allegation to the Standards Board for England. 
 Decide that no action should be taken in respect of the allegation. 

The Sub-Committee considered the complaint against the criteria agreed 
by the Standards Committee at their meeting on 23 June 2008. 
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 DECISION 

The decision of the Sub-Committee was read out: 

The Sub-Committee agreed to take no action in respect of the allegation. 

The Meeting closed at 9.53 am 
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BOROUGH COUNCIL OF KING’S LYNN AND WEST NORFOLK

STANDARDS COMMITTEE – LOCAL ASSESSMENT SUB-COMMITTEE

Minutes of the Local Assessment Sub-Committee
held on Monday 28 September  2009, 

at 9.54 am in the Heritage Room, Town Hall,  
Saturday Market Place, King’s Lynn 

PRESENT:
Mr R Steward (Chairman – Independent Member) 

Mr J Dawson (Parish Representative) and Councillor J Legg 

OFFICERS PRESENT: 

 Nicola Leader  - Monitoring Officer 
Jacqui Bullen   - Senior Lawyer 

 Wendy Vincent  - Democratic Services Officer 

1. Exclusion of Press and Public

RESOLVED “That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act, 
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following 
item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1, 2 and 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Act." 

2. Declaration of Interests

 There were none. 

3. To consider the report of the Monitoring Officer (Complaint 14/09)

 The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting. 

 The Sub-Committee considered the Monitoring Officer’s report.  The 
purpose of the Sub-Committee was to consider the complaint against the 
assessment criteria agreed by the Standards Committee on 23 June 2008 
and to reach one of the three following decisions: 

 Refer the allegation to the Monitoring Officer which under section 
57A(3) of the Local Government Act 2000, as amended, may be 
another authority – for investigation or some other action such as 
mediation or training. 

 Refer the allegation to the Standards Board for England. 
 Decide that no action should be taken in respect of the allegation. 

The Sub-Committee considered the complaint against the criteria agreed 
by the Standards Committee at their meeting on 23 June 2008. 
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 DECISION 

The decision of the Sub-Committee was read out: 

 Allegation a)

The Monitoring Officer would request further information.  This is because 
the information provided was insufficient to make a decision as to whether 
the complaint should be referred for investigation or other action.

Unless and until further information is received, no further action will be 
taken on this allegation. 

Allegation b)

The Sub-Committee agreed to take no action in respect of the allegation. 

4 To consider further information from the Monitoring Officer in 
relation to Complaint 12/09

DECISION

The decision of the Sub-Committee was read out: 

 The Sub-Committee referred the complaint to the Monitoring Officer to 
undertake the necessary action. 

5 To consider further information from the Monitoring Officer in 
relation to Complaint 09/09

DECISION

 The decision of the Sub-Committee was read out: 

The Sub-Committee agreed to discontinue the investigation under Section 
57A(3) of the Local Government Act 2000. 

The Meeting closed at 10.12 am 
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BOROUGH COUNCIL OF KING’S LYNN AND WEST NORFOLK

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Minutes of a Meeting of the Standards Committee held on 
Monday 28 September 2009 at 10.20 am in the Council Chamber, 

Town Hall, Saturday Market Place, King’s Lynn 

PRESENT:
Mr M Sale (Independent Member – Chairman)

Mr R Steward (Independent Member), Mr J Dawson (Parish Representative),  
Mr H Malik (Parish Representative), Mr D Shepperson (Parish Representative) 

Councillor I Goodson, J Legg, A Tyler, Mrs V Spikings (for Item 7 only), 
C Walters, Nicola Leader (Legal Services Manager/Monitoring Officer) 

Jacqui Bullen (Senior Lawyer), Wendy Vincent (Democratic Services Officer) 

The Chairman welcomed Councillor Mrs Spikings, Portfolio Holder for 
Development to the meeting for Item 7 only. 

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor D Harwood and Mr G 
Brierley.

3 MINUTES

The Minutes of the Meeting of the Full Committee held on 22 June 2009, 
Local Assessment Sub-Committees held on 13 July, 12 August and 1 
September 2009 were agreed and signed by the Chairman. 

4 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

 There were none. 

5 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

 RESOLVED:  “That under Section 100(a)(4) of the Local Government Act, 
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following 
items of business on the grounds that they may involve the likely disclosure 
of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1 and 3 of Part 1, 2 and 3 of 
Scheduled 12A to the Act.” 

6 LOCAL ASSESSMENT OF COMPLAINTS

 The Monitoring Officer presented the report detailing the number of 
complaints received and determined by the Local Assessment Sub-
Committee.  She explained that all complaints received were dealt with 
within the timescale of 20 working days as set out in the guidance issued by 
the Standards Board for England. 

 Amendments to the schedule were noted accordingly. 
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RESOLVED:   That the update report be noted. 

 - RETURN TO OPEN SESSION – 

7 REVISIONS TO MEMBER’S CODE OF GOOD PRACTICE FOR 
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL

This item was taken first on the Agenda. 

 The Monitoring Officer explained that the report before Members sought the 
adoption of amendments to the Code of Good Practice for Development 
Control to ensure probity and fairness in decision making. 

 In consultation with the Standards Committee a Members’ Code of Good 
Practice for Development Control (“the Code”) was adopted by Council on 
31 July 2008. 

 In May 2009, the Local Government Association (LGA) published a 
document entitled ‘Probity in Planning – a revised guidance note on good 
planning practice’.  The Council’s Monitoring Officer considered and 
compared the revised guidance against the Code as currently drafted, with 
Members of the Development Control Board (DCB) at a training session in 
June 2009. 

 The Code as drafted already reflected the guidance produced by the LGA 
and therefore only two amendments were proposed as set out below: 

Section 5 – Making decisions with a ‘closed mind’ and the issue of bias

 The Monitoring Officer explained that the first amendment reflected advice 
in the guidance in respect of the situation where a Ward Member who was 
also a Member of the DCB wished to campaign for or against a proposal 
and to represent their ward interests.  The guidance confirmed the position 
that the Member having declared their pre-determined position could 
continue to represent those ward interests as a spokesperson for their local 
community; notwithstanding their DCB Membership, by addressing the 
Board pursuant to the Council’s Standing Orders, which gave Members the 
right, subject to the giving of notice to attend and speak at any meeting. 

 The insertion of the proposed wording to read as follows: 

A pre-determined Member can continue to represent his/her ward interests 
by attending the Board pursuant to Standing Order 34.  However, he/she 
shall withdraw from the room once the opportunities to speak under 
Standing Order 34 have been completed.  This is to counter any suggestion 
that Members of the Board may have been influenced by their continuing 
presence.



- 465 - 

Section 12 – Referring applications to the Board

 The Monitoring Officer explained that the proposed amendment to this 
section arose not in connection with the guidance, but as a result of an issue 
that was raised at the DCB training session in June.  Members agreed that 
when Members exercised their right to refer matters to the Board, that 
application was outside of their ward that, before they referred the matter, 
they would approach the Ward Member and give them the opportunity to 
refer the matter to the Board first.   

 The insertion of the proposed wording to read as follows: 

Members shall not normally refer proposals outside of their ward to the 
Board.  However, where the Member considers that there are planning 
reasons or reasons of wider concern which require the proposal to be 
considered by the Board, he/she will before referring the proposal to the 
Board approach the Ward Member and give them the opportunity to refer 
the matter to the Board. 

 The Committee was invited to comment on the proposed amendments as 
outlined above. 

 There were no questions from the Committee relating to Section 5 of the 
Member’s Code of Good Practice Code for Development Control. 

 In response to questions relating to Section 12, the Monitoring Officer 
explained that her advice to Members would be to attend the Development 
Control Board under Standing Order 34 if they wished speak regarding a 
particular application.  This would allow the Member to speak for 5 minutes, 
instead of 3 minutes given to members of the public.  Once the Member had 
addressed the Board, he/she should withdraw from the meeting. 

 At the invitation of the Chairman, Councillor Mrs Spikings addressed the 
Committee.  She advised that the Development Control Board fully 
endorsed the Member’s Guide of Good Practice for Development Control 
and reiterated that the proposed amendment to Section 12 was as a result 
of an issue raised at a training session held in June 2009.  The proposed 
amendment encouraged better dialogue between Members. 

RECOMMENDED:  That the Standards Committee recommend to 
Council the adoption of the amendments to the Code of Good Practice for 
Development Control as drafted. 

Councillor Mrs Spikings left the meeting at 10.30 am. 

8 NOTIFICATIONS TO PARISH COUNCIL’S CONCERNING COMPLAINTS

 The Monitoring Officer reported that the Standards Board for England had 
suggested that each Parish Council should adopt procedures for 
notifications of complaints as part of their Standing Orders.  This would 
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make it clear at the outset as to how the Parish Council would deal with 
notifications that it received from the Monitoring Officer as part of the local 
assessment process. 

 The Committee was advised that there was currently no guidance available 
to Town and Parish Councils.  The proposed draft policy would therefore 
introduce certainty and consistency for Town and Parish Councils. 

 The Committee was invited to comment/ask questions on the report. 

 In response to questions, it was noted that generally Parish Councils 
welcomed regulations and certainty.  Rules were required and should be 
adhered to.  The Monitoring Officer advised that consultation would take 
place with Town and Parish Councils rather than impose the draft policy.  
The outcome of the consultation with Town and Parish Councils would be 
reported to the next Standards Committee in January 2010. 

 It was suggested that the draft policy should form part of the Parish Clerk’s 
training when appointed. 

 The Chairman suggested that the words “will” be changed to “shall” in 
paragraphs 1 and 8 of the draft policy to ensure consistency within the 
document.

RESOLVED: (1) The contents of the report be noted. 

 (2) The Borough Council would consult Town and Parish Councils on 
the proposed Policy set out in paragraph 2 of the report. 

9 NEW STANDARDS COMMITTEE REGULATIONS

 The Monitoring Officer explained that the purpose of the report was to 
advise Members of the new regulations in relation to the suspension of 
arrangements for the local initial assessment of complaints, the power for 
local authorities to establish joint Standards Committees and the power for 
Standards Committees to grant dispensations to local authority Members, to 
allow them to participate in meetings even when they had prejudicial 
interests.

 The regulations came into force on 15 June 2009.  The Monitoring Officer 
highlighted the salient points as set out in Sections 2, 3 and 4 of the report 
as set out below: 

Section 2 – Initial Assessment of Complaints

 The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 amended 
Part III of the Local Government Act 2000, which regulated the conduct of 
local authority Members.  The 2007 Act introduced a system in which 
assessment of allegations of breaches of the Code of Conduct of local 
authorities would be undertaken by the local authorities’ own Standards 
Committees.  However, provision was made, at Section 57D of the Local 
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Government Act 2000, for the Standards Board for England in prescribed 
circumstances to suspend the initial assessment functions of Local 
Standards Committees, and direct them to refer allegations to the Standards 
Board for England, or to the Standards Committee of another local authority.  
The regulations specify the circumstances in which the Standards Board for 
England may give such a direction as outlined below: 

 The Standards Committee has failed to have regard to guidance 
issued by the Standards Board. 

 The Standards Committee has failed to comply with a direction 
issued by the Standards Board. 

 The Standards Committee or the local authority’s Monitoring Officer 
has failed to carry out functions in a reasonable time or a reasonable 
manner.

 The local authority or its Standards Committee has invited the 
Standards Board to give a direction. 

 In response to a question, the Monitoring Officer explained that a monitoring 
form was completed on a quarterly and annual basis and submitted to the 
Standards Board for England.  This enabled the Standards Board for 
England to assess whether local authorities were carrying out their functions 
properly.

Section 3 – Joint Standards Committees

 The Committee was advised that the Regulations allowed two or more local 
authorities to set up a joint Standards Committee to discharge all or some of 
their standards functions in Part III of the Local Government Act 2000 or 
functions relating to local authority Members, officers, staff and committees 
in Part 1 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.  

 The Monitoring Officer explained that to date, the Borough Council had not 
received any request to set up a joint Standards Committee.  She also 
reported that she was not aware of any other Norfolk authorities seeking to 
set up a joint Standards Committee.  However, with shared services on the 
agenda, it might be something to revisit in the future.  A guidance note was 
attached to the report outlining how to establish and operate a joint 
Standards Committee if a decision was taken to go down that route. 

 There were no questions from the Committee on this section of the report. 

Section 4 – Dispensations

 The Monitoring Officer reported that the Members’ Code of Conduct 
required Members to withdraw from meetings of their authorities when any 
matter in which they had a prejudicial interest was being discussed.  
However, they were not required to do so if they had obtained a 
dispensation for their local authority’s Standards Committee.  The new 
Regulations introduced new provisions to clarify the grounds on which 



- 468 - 

Standards Committees may grant dispensations to a Member as set out 
below:

 The transaction of business of the authority would be impeded 
because either more than 50% of the Members who would otherwise 
be entitled to vote at a meeting would be prohibited from voting, 
unless they are granted a dispensation, or the number of Members 
that are prohibited from voting at a meeting would upset the political 
balance of the meeting unless dispensations are granted. 

 The Member had submitted a written request to the Standards 
Committee for a dispensation, explaining why it is desirable. 

 The Standards Committee concluded that, having regard to the fact 
that the business of the authority would otherwise be impeded and to 
the written request and to any other relevant circumstances, it is 
appropriate to grant the dispensation. 

It was highlighted that dispensations may be granted for speaking only or for 
speaking and voting.  The Regulations required Standards Committees to 
ensure that the granting of any dispensation was recorded in writing and 
that this was kept with their local authority’s Register of Members’ Interests. 

The Borough Council had not received any requests to date. 

In response to questions, the Monitoring Officer explained that any request 
for a dispensation would need to be made in writing to the Borough 
Council’s Standards Committee.  A special meeting of the Standards 
Committee would then be convened to consider the request.  Further 
information was outlined on Page 6 of the guidance attached to the report. 

The Monitoring Officer advised that external funding had been sought by the 
Borough Council’s Democratic Services Section to conduct training sessions 
during January 2010 for all Councillors relating to the changes in the Code 
of Conduct. 

RESOLVED: That the Committee note the provisions of the new 
Regulations.

10 ANNUAL STANDARDS CONFERENCE OCTOBER 2009

The Chairman reported that he would not be attending the Annual 
Standards Conference in October 2009 as the Borough Council had 
withdrawn funding for national courses.  In the past the Conference had 
provided opportunities to network with other Independent Members and 
share valuable experiences.  Councillor Tyler explained that this funding 
was being withdrawn across the Council for both Members and officers.  
The Chairman advised that dependant upon the Council’s funding for next 
year, he would take the opportunity to discuss his attendance at the 2010 
Conference with the Borough Council’s Chief Executive. 
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 Reference was made to the regional meetings previously held at which 
Independent Members attended.  However, these meetings appeared to no 
longer take place. 

 RESOLVED: That the comments made above be noted. 

11 ANY OTHER BUSINESS

The Chairman invited the Committee to raise any other issues. 

 Mr Malik referred to an email regarding availability for dates for a Panel 
Hearing on 9 and 15 October.  The Democratic Services Officer confirmed 
that these dates were no longer required and could therefore be removed 
from diaries.  She would be in contact shortly to canvass for a new date. 

10 DATE OF NEXT MEETING

 RESOLVED:   That the next meeting of the Standards Committee be held 
on Monday 18 January 2010 at 10 am in the Committee Suite, King’s Court, 
Chapel Street, King’s Lynn. 

The meeting closed at 11.12 am
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BOROUGH COUNCIL OF KING’S LYNN AND WEST NORFOLK

STANDARDS COMMITTEE – LOCAL ASSESSMENT SUB-COMMITTEE

Minutes of the Local Assessment Sub-Committee
held on Monday 16 November  2009, 

at 10.18 am in the Council Chamber, Town Hall,  
Saturday Market Place, King’s Lynn 

PRESENT:
Mr M Sale (Chairman – Independent Member) 

Mr D Shepperson (Parish Representative) and Councillor A Tyler 

OFFICERS PRESENT: 

 Nicola Leader  - Monitoring Officer 
 Wendy Vincent  - Democratic Services Officer 

1. Exclusion of Press and Public

RESOLVED “That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act, 
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following 
item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1, 2 and 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Act." 

2. Declaration of Interests

 There were none. 

3. To consider the report of the Monitoring Officer (Complaint 15/09)

 The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting. 

 The Sub-Committee considered the Monitoring Officer’s report.  The 
purpose of the Sub-Committee was to consider the complaint against the 
assessment criteria agreed by the Standards Committee on 23 June 2008 
and to reach one of the three following decisions: 

 Refer the allegation to the Monitoring Officer which under section 
57A(3) of the Local Government Act 2000, as amended, may be 
another authority – for investigation or some other action such as 
mediation or training. 

 Refer the allegation to the Standards Board for England. 
 Decide that no action should be taken in respect of the allegation. 

The Sub-Committee considered the complaint against the criteria agreed 
by the Standards Committee at their meeting on 23 June 2008. 
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 DECISION 

The decision of the Sub-Committee was read out: 

The Sub-Committee unanimously agreed to take no action in respect of 
the allegation. 

The Meeting closed at 10.30 am 



REPORT

Report of an investigation under Section 60(2) of the Local Government Act 2000 by 
Teresa Jane Campion, Solicitor and Deputy Monitoring Officer to the Borough Council of 
King’s Lynn & West Norfolk, into the allegations concerning Councillor Francis Moreau a 
member of the Borough Council of Kings Lynn and West Norfolk 

Page 1 
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1 Executive summary 

 i. A complaint has been made by Mrs Heather Davison. The first allegation is that Councillor Francis
   Moreau failed to comply with paragraph 3(1), 3(2) (b) and 5 of the Borough Council’s Code of Conduct in
   That he did not respond to correspondence delivered to him by the complainant and behaved
   aggressively during subsequent telephone exchanges with the complainant’s husband Mr Davison. 

ii. The second allegation relates to an incident at a meeting of Wiggenhall St Germans Parish Council on
    19th January 2009. It is alleged that during the course of that meeting Councillor Moreau called Mr and
     Mrs Davison “loopy” and “malingerers”. 

iii I have investigated whether Cllr Moreau has breached of the Borough Council’s Code of Conduct. 
   The outcome of the investigation is a finding of no breach in relation to allegation 1 and a breach of the 
   Code of Conduct in relation to allegation 2. 

2 Francis Moreau’s official duties 

2.1 Francis Moreau accepted office as a Borough Councillor on 17th May 2007. A copy of Cllr Moreau’s
     Declaration of acceptance of office and undertaking to observe the Code is included at Appendix A. 

3 Relevant legislation 

i. In 2007 the Borough Council of Kings Lynn and West Norfolk adopted the Model Code of Conduct
    (“the Code”) in 2007 in which the following paragraphs are included:- 

General obligations 

3.—(1) You must treat others with respect. 

(2) You must not— 

(a) do anything which may cause your authority to breach any of the equality enactments (as defined in 
section 33 of the Equality Act 2006

(b) bully any person;

(c) intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is or is likely to be—

(i) a complainant,

(ii) a witness, or

(iii) involved in the administration of any investigation or proceedings,  

in relation to an allegation that a member (including yourself) has failed to comply with his or her authority’s 
code of conduct; or 

(d) do anything which compromises or is likely to compromise the impartiality of those who work for, or on 
behalf of, your authority.

5.  You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as bringing your 
office or authority into disrepute. 

4 Evidence and Deputy Monitoring Officer Conclusions on the facts:- 

I have investigated whether Cllr Francis Moreau has failed to comply with the Borough Council’s Code of 
Conduct (“the Code”). In the course  of my investigation I have interviewed Mr and Mrs Davison, Mrs 
Elaine Oliver, the Parish Clerk and corresponded with Cllr Moreau by letter and email in relation to matter 
as he  was unable to attend an interview due to work commitments. 
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Allegation 1

The Complainants express dissatisfaction with Cllr Moreau’s behaviour in relation to a planning issue near 
the Complainants’ home. The complaint is that Cllr Moreau did not respond to correspondence delivered to 
him by the Complainants and behaved aggressively during subsequent telephone exchanges between Mr 
Davison and Cllr Moreau. 

I interviewed Mr and Mrs Davison separately about their complaint and took separate witness statements 
from each of them. These are produced as Appendix B to the Investigation Report. Mrs Davison stated that 
she first became aware of a planning application to build five houses on the allotments behind our house 
from an advertisement in the local newspaper The Lynn News. 

She rang Cllr Moreau about the planning application around about 20th May 2008. He explained that he 
was self employed and worked from 6.00 am until 8.00pm. He indicated he was willing to meet with myself 
and Mr Davison. It was agreed that she would produce a folder of the relevant documents and post them 
through his letter box.  Cllr Moreau agreed to read through these and they agreed to meet. He commented 
that his personal feelings were against such developments and said he would represent them in relation to 
the planning application against the development. This was the first time that Mrs Davison and her 
husband had dealt with Cllr Moreau. They approached him as he was one of their local councillors. 

On 21st May 2008 accompanied by her husband Mrs Davison went to Cllr Moreau’s property to hand 
deliver the folder of correspondence. Before posting the folder of documents through the letterbox Mrs 
Davison checked with a man who was digging his garden at the first bungalow on the corner which was the 
correct letterbox. He indicated the letter box and she posted the documents through the letter box.  The 
documents were sent with a letter dated 21st May 2008 addressed to Cllr Moreau. 

As she had no response from Cllr Moreau she wrote to Henry Bellingham explaining the couples’ concern 
over the lack of a response from Cllr Moreau.

On 7th June 2008 she then wrote to Cllr Moreau and posted the letter by First Class post. 

Mr and Mrs Davison attended their local Parish Council meetings where the subject of the planning 
application came up and that Cllr Moreau did not respond to correspondence. Members of the Parish 
Council indicated that they had similar problems in contacting Cllr Moreau. 

The Clerk to the Parish Council rang Mrs Davison to ask whether it was all right if Cllr Moreau was given 
their names and informed him of their concerns that he had not responded to their correspondence. 

As a result of this Cllr Moreau rang up to speak to Mrs Davison and her husband answered the telephone 
instead as she was out at the time. The telephone conversation was recorded on the answer machine.

After that they received four telephone messages on our answering machine from Cllr Moreau on 13th

January 2009.  She does not believe they were in to take the calls.  

They listened to the messages later. They lasted only for a few minutes. 

The messages stated we should get a Solicitor as he was going to sue them. He also demanded an 
apology. (Reference to letter 6th February 2009.) 

She said she was able to provide the Investigating Officer with a copy of the telephone messages allegedly 
from Cllr Moreau left on their answering machine.  The Investigating Officer subsequently produced a 
written transcript which Mr and Mrs Davison agreed as an accurate record of the telephone messages left 
on the answering machine. A copy of the transcript from the telephone answering machine is produced as 
Appendix C. 

Mr Davison confirmed his wife’s account of how they became aware of the planning application and that he 
accompanied his wife in delivering copies of the planning applications and other documents to Cllr 
Moreau’s house. 

He also confirmed they attended meetings of the Parish Council where the subject of the planning 
application came up and that Cllr Moreau did not response to correspondence. Members of the Parish 
Council indicated that they had similar problems in contacting Cllr Moreau. 
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The Clerk to the Parish Council contacted his wife by phone to ask whether she could inform Cllr Moreau 
of our concerns that he had not responded to our correspondence and gave him their names.

As a result of this Cllr Moreau rang up to speak to his wife, as she was out he took the call.  The telephone 
conversation was recorded on the answering machine. Cllr Moreau’s tone was rude and aggressive. He 
does not recall saying anything to provoke this action but he admits he said to Cllr Moreau that “He was 
useless as a councillor as he did not appear to do anything.” He then put the phone down. He did not call 
him any names. 

Cllr Moreau denied receiving the folder of documents concerning the planning application which had been 
delivered by hand to his address. 

After that telephone call Mr and Mrs Davison received four telephone calls which were left on their 
answering machine. Cllr Moreau said in the telephone messages left on their answering machine “That he 
couldn’t get a word in edgeways and suggested they go to see a solicitor as he was going to sue them.” 

Mr Davison said he did nothing to provoke this reaction other than saying he was “useless as a councillor 
as he didn’t appear to do anything.” He said he thought they were both out when the other telephone calls 
were made although they could have been in the garden and did not hear the phone. 

Cllr Moreau responded to the Investigating Officer via correspondence he claimed that he had initially 
spoke to Mrs Davison and that Mr Davison took the phone from Mrs Davison and started shouting at him. 
He did not understand everything that Mr Davison said because he was shouting very loudly and at great 
speed.

Cllr Moreau admitted leaving machines on the telephone answering machine. (He was provided with a 
copy of the transcript by the Investigating Officer.)  He thought however that part of the second message 
left on the tape was missing. Copies of letters and emails between the Investigating Officer and Cllr 
Moreau are produced at Appendix D. 

Having heard the evidence from all parties it would seem the situation may have been exasperated over 
the delivery or non delivery of the folder of documents to Cllr Moreau’s house. It is clear that there was a 
heated exchange between Mr Davison which was not witnessed by any one else. Had there been a 
witness there it would be difficult for them to hear both sides of the telephone conversation and for those 
reasons I conclude in relation to this allegation I do not find that there has been a  breach of the Code of 
Conduct.

Allegation 2

This relates to an incident at a meeting of Wiggenhall St Germans Parish Council meeting on 19th January 
2009. It is alleged that during the course of that meeting Cllr Moreau called Mr and Mrs Davison “loopy” 
and “malingerers”. 

In relation to this allegation Mrs Davison stated that at the meeting of Wiggenhall St Germans Parish 
Council on 19th January 2009 during the public question time at the beginning of the meeting she 
mentioned that she and her husband had concerns over a planning application and had delivered a folder 
of documents to Cllr Moreau’s home address. 

Cllr Moreau denied having received these documents. 

She stated that she had checked with a neighbour of Cllr Moreau to ensure she had the correct letter box. 

Cllr Moreau then described them both as “loony and not worth bothering about.” He denied receiving the 
information she had posted.  She did not respond to his comments and remained calm but stuck to her 
guns that she had delivered the documents to the correct address. 

She did not think she provoked the reaction she received  at all she did add that  she had written to Henry 
Bellingham  as the Borough Council ( Cllr Moreau) was not offering them any help at all in relation to the 
planning application.  She was surprised by the reaction she had received from Cllr Moreau and perceived 
this to be rude and aggressive. 

There was then some discussion amongst the Parish Councillors as to what Cllr Moreau’s role was as a 
Borough Councillor as he did not appear to attend many of the Parish Council meetings. 
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At the meeting other than members of the Parish Council she recalls that Cllr Richard Rockcliffe from 
Norfolk County Council was in attendance and one of their neighbours Christine Sullivan.

The discussion about this item lasted for about 10 minutes. 

Cllr Moreau’s attitude appeared at this meeting to be rude and aggressive. She did not believe that the 
couple had done anything to justify this reaction. 

Mr Davison when interviewed said that at the meeting on 19th January 2009 they sat behind Cllr Moreau so 
he had his back to them. Cllr Moreau was rude to everyone at the meeting and was rude to his wife. He did 
not recall the words that he used to her but he denied receiving the folder of documents that they had 
posted through his letterbox and he went on about it not being properly addressed because it did not have 
the post code on it. His wife stated that this was not necessary as it had been hand delivered and not 
posted.

He stated that they stayed for the rest of the Parish Council meeting. 

The Parish Clerk Mrs Oliver was interviewed with regard to the allegations made Cllr Moreau and a witness 
statement taken from Mrs Oliver which is produced as Appendix E. She stated that it had been previously 
mentioned at Parish Council meetings that Cllr Moreau did not attend meetings and contact with him was 
difficult. 

At a meeting of the Parish Council this was mentioned by Mr and Mrs Davison as they were trying to 
contact him about a planning application. This was duly minuted and included in a report to The Lynn 
News.

Cllr Moreau then contacted her in a very aggressive and rude manner, to inquire who had been 
complaining about him and stated that he worked as well as being a Borough Councillor. 

The Clerk contacted Mr and Mrs Davison to see that they agreed to her passing on their contact details so 
Cllr Moreau could speak to them directly. 

Cllr Moreau and Mr and Mrs Davison attended the Parish Council’s meeting on 19th January 2009. At the 
beginning of the meeting there is an open forum for parishioners, this is minuted but it is not required to be 
so. Comments were minuted at this time as it reminds the Parish Council of issues that have been raised 
and how to address them immediately or at a future meeting, whatever is appropriate. 

Minutes never relay every comment or statement and any personal comments as they are published on the 
Parish Council Notice board, put on their web site and published in the Parish Council magazine and The 
Lynn News. 

The Clerk recalls Mrs Davison at the meeting saying she had tried to contact Cllr Moreau over her and her 
husband’s concerns over a planning application. 

Cllr Moreau stated that he never received the paperwork which Mr and Mrs Davison alleged to have hand 
delivered to his house. He claimed they had the wrong post code and at this point became abusive and 
pompous. He demanded an apology from Mr and Mrs Davison and the Parish Council. 

Mrs Davison remained very calm and claimed she had delivered the documents to his house. 

Some of the Parish Councillors asked what the role of a Borough Councillor is, as Cllr Moreau hardly 
attends Parish Council meetings. 

During the tirade of comments Cllr Moreau referred to the Davisons as “loony” but she was not sure if this 
was directed to Mr or Mrs Davison or both. 

Mr Davison did not say very much and Mrs Davison remained calm through out the meeting and reiterated 
her point of view calmly and quietly. Cllr Moreau stared he lived at White Cottage not White Hall which Mrs 
Davison had referred to in her presentation in error. Cllr Moreau stated that he did not have a post box and 
never received the documents she hand delivered.
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At the meeting another parishioner supported Cllr Moreau saying that he had helped her with her planning 
application.

All minutes are circulated to members of the Parish Council, Borough Council and County Council for their 
comments. If the Parish Council is in agreement then the Chairman signs them off during the following 
Parish Council meeting in public. January’s Parish Council minutes were signed off in March 2009. The 
minutes are also displayed on the Parish Council web site. 

Cllr Moreau responded to the Investigating Officer questions by letter and email. He states that he never 
received the documents the Davisons alleged they had delivered to his property. 

He recalls the Parish Council meeting on 19th January 2009. He attended this meeting as he became 
aware of the Davisons planning issues after he read comments in the Parish News that he was impossible 
to contact. He was shocked by this as he has a published telephone number and answering machine as 
well as a postal address and email. In attending this meeting he did not attend his group meeting on the 
same day. 

He stated that he did not insult Mr and Mrs Davison or other Parish Council attendees and says that the 
allegations were made against him because he is unable to attend all their meetings. He also stated that 
there was no mention of any insults in the Parish Council minutes. 

He recalls Mrs Davison making claims about him not responding to her correspondence and that he replied 
that he had never received it.  She went onto say she hand delivered it and alleged that he was lying which 
he took offence to. 

He believes that the allegations have been made because he is unable to attend all the Parish Council 
meetings as it clashes with his group meetings. He attended the meeting on 19th January 2009 to try to 
clear the matter up with regarding to Mr and Mrs Davison’s planning issues. 

Cllr Moreau does not admit to calling either Mr or Mrs Davison “loony” or “malingerers”. 

When asked whether or not there was any one able to assist with the investigation he stated that Cllr 
Rockcliffe was present at the meeting. 

The Investigating Officer wrote to Cllr Rockcliffe on 25th June and 22nd July 2009 but has received no 
response to her letters.

The draft report was sent with a covering letter to both the complainants and Cllr Moreau on 3rd September 
2009.  No comments were received from the complainants but Cllr Moreau responded to the report by 
email on 17th September 2009 with comments on the draft report. 

He commented that he was not able to attend the interview with the Investigating Officer due to work 
commitments rather than preferring not to attend the interview. 

It was incorrect to say that Mr Davison called him “useless” on the telephone as he could not understand 
what Mr Davison had said. 

Mrs Oliver’s statement is incorrect as he lives at White Hall and not White Cottage.

He stated the fact that he had helped Mrs Scott another parishioner was reduced to one line in Mrs Oliver’s 
statement. He suggested that the Investigating Officer write to Mrs Scott as she was at the Parish Council 
meeting.

Appendix A of the Investigating Officer’s report states that the Davisons wrote to Cllr Moreau reproaching 
him. He confirmed that he never received anything in writing from them. He stated he did not ring them for 
the purpose of shouting at them but to see if he could help and claimed he received a torrent of abuse. 

His explanation is that there is a history of bad feeling between himself and the Parish Council which 
started in 1997 when he moved to St Germans when a Parish Councillor claimed that there was a footpath 
through his main gates and up to his drive. 
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One of the Parish Councillors upon hearing he was made a Borough Councillor repeatedly phoned his 
secretary and refused to leave a message. When he returned home later he rang her to see what she 
wanted that was clearly urgent.  He alleges that she replied “Nothing really”. 

On 17th September 2009 the Investigating Officer was informed by email that Cllr Moreau had recorded the 
Parish Council meeting of 19th January 2009.  The recording was on his computer and he was provided 
with a memory stick to transfer the information onto the memory stick so that this could be presented as 
part of the case and viewed by members of the Standards Committee. 

On 5th October 2009 Cllr Moreau also provided the address of Mrs Scott who was also attended the Parish 
Council on 19th January 2009 and would be able to provide evidence to support Cllr Moreau. 

Mrs Scott sent a letter dated 10th October 2009 in support of Cllr Moreau. This was received on 12th

October 2009 and is produced at Appendix F. 

The memory stick was hand delivered to the Borough Council of Kings Lynn reception area at  Kings Court 
and was received on 15th October 2009. 

The memory stick was viewed by the Investigating Officer on her computer using head phones. The 
recording itself appears to be a recording of the Parish Council Meeting of 19th January 2009.  The sound 
quality of the recording is not particular good and in places is difficult to follow. This further evidence does 
not really change the view of the Investigating Officer that in relation to the second allegation that the Code 
of Conduct has been breached.

The Standards Committee will have to consider all the evidence including the recording of the meeting of 
19th January 2009 and the witnesses’ testimonies and decide on the balance of probabilities whether the 
Code of Conduct has been breached.

5 Reasoning 

In relation to a possible breach of Paragraph 3(1) that is treating people with respect, the Code of 
Guidance – Code of Conduct for members May 2007 deals with cases where individuals are subject to 
unreasonable or excessive personal attack. This particularly applies to dealing with the public and officers.  
Whilst it is acknowledged that some members of the public can make unreasonable demands on 
members, members should, as far as possible, treat the public courteously and with consideration. Rude 
and offensive behaviour lowers the public’s expectations and confidence in elected representatives. 

The Investigating Officer is of the view that the meeting on 19th January 2009 was a very difficult meeting 
which got somewhat out of hand. This is supported by the Complainants’ witness statement and the 
witness statement from the Parish Clerk. I accept the explanation from the Parish Clerk that she would 
never put personal comments in the Parish Council minutes as these would be published on their website, 
Parish magazine and in the Lynn News. The way that the Parish Clerk records her minutes is not any 
different to the recording of Borough Council meetings. They also would not record personal comments 
because they are available for inspection by the public and are published on the Borough Council’s web 
site. 

I find that it was likely that Cllr Moreau was rude to Mr and Mrs Davison albeit perhaps not intentional. This 
appears to be corroborated by the evidence of Mr and Mrs Davison although Mr Davison cannot remember 
the exact words used.

There is some evidence from the Parish Council Minutes of 19th January 2009 to suggest the Parish 
Council raised some concerns that Cllr Moreau did not attend Parish Council Meetings and this is 
corroborated by the Parish Clerk but there is no evidence to suggest that this was the reason for the 
complaint against Cllr Moreau by Mrs Davison. 

Having considered all the evidence, unfortunately I am of the view that Cllr Moreau did not treat Mr and 
Mrs Davison with respect and there has been a breach of Paragraph 3(1) of the Borough Council’s Code of 
Conduct.

I have also looked at Paragraph 3(2) (b) of the Code of Conduct but I am of the view that the incident on 
19th January 2009 is not sufficiently serious to constitute bullying. Bullying under the Code of Guidance is 
defined as “offensive, intimidating, malicious, insulting or humiliating behaviour.” Such behaviour may 
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happen once or be part of a pattern of behaviour directed at a weaker person or person over whom you 
have some actual or perceived influence. Bullying behaviour attempts to undermine an individual or a 
group of individuals, is detrimental to their confidence and capability, and may adversely affect their 
health.”

From the evidence available it appears prior to the Complainants dealings with Cllr Moreau over a planning 
issue they had no previous dealings with him either as an individual or as a Councillor. This appears to be 
a one off incident between Cllr Moreau and Mrs Davison and there is no pattern of behaviour or evidence 
that Mrs Davison is a weaker person or person over which Cllr Moreau has any actual or perceived 
influence I therefore conclude that there has been no breach of Paragraph of Paragraph 3(2) (b) of the 
Code of Conduct 2007. 

In relation to a possible breach of Paragraph 5 of the Code of Conduct. It is the view of the Investigating 
Officer that this paragraph is concerned primarily with criminal convictions or dishonest and deceitful 
behaviour so as to bring Cllr Moreau’s role as a member of the Borough Council of Kings Lynn and West 
Norfolk or the Borough Council of Kings Lynn into disrepute. There is no evidence to suggest that Cllr 
Moreau has breached Paragraph 5 of the Code so in this regard there is a finding of no breach. 

6   Finding of Deputy Monitoring Officer 

I find that there has been a breach by Cllr Moreau of Paragraph 3(1) of the Borough Council’s Code of 
Conduct.

 Teresa Campion 
 Senior Solicitor and Deputy Monitoring Officer to the Borough Council of King's Lynn
 & West Norfolk 

Dated 29th October 2009 
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APPENDIX A   TO INVESTIGATION REPORT 

Declaration of acceptance of office and undertaking to observe the Code of Conduct 

APPENDIX B 

Witness statements of Heather Davison and Robert Davison  

APPENDIX C 

Transcript of telephone messages from telephone answer machine 

APPENDIX D 

Copies of letters and emails and letters between Cllr Moreau and the Investigating Officer 

APPENDIX E 

Witness statement of Elaine Oliver 

APPENDIX F 

Witness statement of Mrs Scott 
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